
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Governance and Human Resources 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Members of the Housing Scrutiny Committee are summoned to Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on 13 July 2015 at 7.30 pm. 
 
 
John Lynch 
Head of Democratic Services 
 
 

Enquiries to : Jonathan Moore 

Tel : 0207 527 3308 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 3 July 2015 

 
 
Membership 2015/16 Substitute Members 
 
Councillor Michael O'Sullivan (Chair) 
Councillor Dave Poyser (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Raphael Andrews 
Councillor Alex Diner 
Councillor Aysegul Erdogan 
Councillor Una O'Halloran 
Councillor Mouna Hamitouche  MBE 
Councillor Flora Williamson 
Rose Marie MacDonald (PFI Managed Tenants) 
Jim Rooke (Directly Managed Tenants) 
 

Councillor Gary Heather 
Councillor Olly Parker 
Councillor Alice Perry 
Councillor Gary Doolan 
Councillor Rakhia Ismail 
Councillor Jenny Kay 
Councillor Angela Picknell 
Councillor Nurullah Turan 
 

 
Quorum: is 4 Councillors 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal Matters 
 

Page 

1.  Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2.  Declaration of Substitute Members 
 

 

3.  Declarations of Interests 
 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you 
or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council. 

(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 
of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 
 

 

4.  Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

1 - 6 

5.  Chair's Report 
 

 

6.  Order of Business 
 

 

7.  Public Questions 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

B.  
 

Scrutiny Items 
 

Page 

1.  RSL Scrutiny 
 

 

2.  Work Programme 2015/16 
 

7 - 8 

3.  Capital Programming: Scrutiny Initiation Document and Presentation 
 

9 - 10 

4.  Responsive Repairs: Scrutiny Initiation Document and Presentation 
 

11 - 12 

5.  Future Approach to RSL Scrutiny 
 

13 - 14 

C.  
 

Urgent Non Exempt Matters 
 

 

 Any non- exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 
 

 

D.  
 

Exclusion of Public and Press 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the agenda, 
any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential 
information within the terms of the Access to Information Procedure rules in the 
Constitution and if so, whether to exclude the Public and Press during 
discussion thereof. 
 

 

6.  Exempt Reports ( if any ) 
 

 

 
 

The next meeting of the Housing Scrutiny Committee will be on 7 September 2015



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Housing Scrutiny Committee -  8 June 2015 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Housing Scrutiny Committee held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  8 June 2015 at 7.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: 
 
 
Co-opted members: 

O'Sullivan (Chair), Poyser (Vice-Chair), Andrews, 
Diner, O'Halloran, Williamson and Tenants 
 
Jim Rooke. 

 
 

Councillor Michael O'Sullivan in the Chair 
 

 

78 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A1) 
Apologies for absence were received from Rose Marie Macdonald and Councillor Aysegul 
Erdogan. 
 

79 DECLARATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A2) 
None. 
 

80 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS (Item A3) 
None. 
 

81 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A4) 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 April 2015 be confirmed and the Chair be 
authorised to sign them.  
 

82 CHAIRS REPORT (Item A5) 
The Chair reminded the Committee that the scrutiny review reports on Scaffolding and Work 
Platforms and Estate Services Management presented elsewhere on the agenda were 
drafts and that comments were encouraged on the content of the reports.  
 

83 MEMBERSHIP, TERMS OF REFERENCE AND DATES OF MEETINGS (Item A6) 
 
RESOLVED:  
That the membership, terms of reference and dates of meetings of the Housing Scrutiny 
Committee for the municipal year 2015/16 be noted.  
 

84 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A7) 
The Chair stated that the order of business would be as per the agenda.  
 

85 PUBLIC QUESTIONS (Item A8) 
The Chair outlined the procedure for public questions and the filming and recording of 
meetings.  
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Housing Scrutiny Committee -  8 June 2015 
 

2 
 

86 RSL SCRUTINY (Item B1) 
The Chair advised that One Housing Association had been invited to the meeting however 
was unavailable to attend. It was commented that the organisation would be invited to 
attend a future meeting.  
 

87 SCAFFOLDING AND WORK PLATFORMS: DRAFT REPORT AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS (Item B2) 
The Committee considered the draft report and recommendations of the Scaffolding and 
Work Platforms review. A discussion was had during which the following main points were 
made –  
 

 It was noted that the primary ongoing cost of scaffolding was in labour as opposed 
to equipment and a discussion was had on the economies of scale of scaffolding 
companies.  

 A member of the public was encouraged that the cost of scaffolding for responsive 
repairs had decreased however commented that scaffolding was quick to assemble 
and disassemble and for this reason should not be overly expensive. It was 
commented that the report of the Committee would be sent to members of the 
Islington Leaseholders Association.  

 It was agreed that a number of small amendments should be made to the report 
before submitting to the Executive.  
 

RESOLVED:  
That the report be agreed, subject to the following amendments:  
1) references to making residents’ experiences of scaffolding ‘positive’ be replaced with 

more neutral wording; 
2) recommendation six be amended to make reference to capital works as well as repairs; 
3) recommendation seven be amended to make reference to schedules of rates in capital 

contracts. 
 
 

88 ESTATE SERVICES MANAGEMENT: DRAFT REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
(Item B3) 
The Committee considered the draft report and recommendations of the Estate Services 
Management review. A discussion was had during which the following main points were 
made –  
 

 In addition to the suggestion of offering annualised hours to Greenspace staff to 
ensure they are retained during the winter months, it was suggested that synergies 
with other sections could also be explored to offer full annual employment and 
increase the resources available to other sections.  

 It was clarified that the proposal to enhance the caretaking service through the 
introduction of new tasks should not be at the expense of existing caretaking duties.  

 It was queried if the commercial rent of garages had any impact on the conversion of 
garage units to housing. The Committee considered that it would be inappropriate 
for a garage to be rented on a commercial basis when it could feasibly be developed 
into housing for local people. Officers confirmed that the development of garages 
into housing was prioritised ahead of commercial opportunities.  

 The Committee raised concern with the cleanliness and maintenance of garages 
and suggested that some garages may be used for unintended purposes. It was 
also suggested that the income received from garage rent may not cover the full 
cost of providing the service. It was queried if the estates section could monitor the 
use of garages for purposes not permitted in the terms of their lease.  

Page 2



Housing Scrutiny Committee -  8 June 2015 
 

3 
 

 Following a question from a member of the public, it was clarified that mechanised 
services could seek to generate income by selling their services to housing 
associations, for example.  

 It was agreed that, in addition to advising tenants when their caretaker is 
unavailable, proposals for increased holiday cover should be investigated. 

 It was agreed that a number of small amendments should be made to the report 
before submitting to the Executive.  

 
RESOLVED:  
That the report be agreed, subject to the following amendments:  
1) recommendation one be amended to clarify that enhancing the caretaking service is 

subject to ‘staff and union consultation, and resources being available’;  
2) recommendation six be amended to make reference to exploring synergies with other 

services;  
3) the inclusion of an additional recommendation that the cost, condition and usage of 

garages be reviewed and consideration be given to how estate services can contribute 
to the monitoring of garage usage;  

4) the inclusion of an additional recommendation that proposals for increased holiday 
cover for caretakers be investigated.  

 

89 HOUSING REPAIRS: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Item B4) 
John Everett, Group Leader for Customer Relations, made a presentation to the Committee, 
copy interleaved, during which the following main points were made –  
 

 The performance of the in-house repairs service was measured in terms of 
outcomes for residents.  

 The service had commissioned KWEST to undertake independent evaluation of 
customer satisfaction. This evaluated a statistically significant number of repairs 
each month.  

 It was reported that customer satisfaction was the service’s most important 
measure. From November 2014 to May 2015 customer satisfaction ranged from 
65% to 79%. The lowest satisfaction rating was received in February 2015; this was 
following difficulties with a roofing contractor which the Council no longer used.  

 Since insourcing the service staff had received training to instil a focus on customer 
satisfaction.  

 It was explained that the service had three categories of repairs; emergency, in 
which operatives attended within 2 hours and resolved the issue within 24 hours; 
urgent, in which operatives attended and resolved the issue within 24 hours; and 
routine, in which operatives resolved the issue within 20 days. It was noted that 35% 
of repairs were listed as either emergency or urgent and the service was looking to 
reduce this number by implementing another category of repair with a completion 
period of five days.  

 For the 2014/15 financial year, repairs completed within the stated timescales were 
79.68% for emergency repairs, 80.42% for urgent repairs and 86.24% for routine 
repairs. In April 2015 these figures had increased in 85%, 85% and 90% 
respectively. It was hoped that this was indicative of an improvement in performance 
for 2015/16.  

 Action was being taken to improve performance. Stock levels in vehicles and stores 
were being reviewed to ensure that operatives had access to the right equipment, 
scheduling systems were being improved, and service failures were being 
investigated on a monthly basis.  

 The service sought to achieve a ‘first time fix’, which was defined as completing a 
repair on the day of the first visit by the original operative. The latest overall ‘first 
time fix’ performance figure was given as 85%. Officers were seeking to improve 

Page 3



Housing Scrutiny Committee -  8 June 2015 
 

4 
 

performance by developing the skills of operatives in multiple trades. The service 
was also working to improve the data collected when repairs are first reported to 
ensure that operatives arrive at each job knowing what to expect, with the correct 
parts and skills to complete the repair.  

 The Committee was concerned that only around 87% of appointments for routine 
repairs were kept. The importance of resident faith and trust in the service was 
emphasised. Improvements were to be made by further training operatives on use of 
their PDA and improving understanding of how long each repair would take.  

 It was noted that the performance of the service was monitored through the Repairs 
Integration Board which was comprised of senior offers and considered service 
delivery, work structures, and internal processes. It was considered that there were 
good communication channels within the service which enabled operative feedback 
to be reported to the Board.  

 In response to a query, it was advised that some level of qualitative analysis was 
undertaken by KWEST to identify trends and the reasons why residents may not be 
satisfied. Leaseholders were included in this monitoring, however it was noted that 
the Council only had limited responsibility for repairs to leaseholder properties. It 
was suggested that the service could evaluate councillor casework to obtain an 
insight into more serious complaints and service failures.  

 It was advised that the service did benchmark performance against other local 
authorities, however as data was not collected in a uniform way, a direct comparison 
could not always be made. Although it was useful to compare performance against 
other authorities, it was noted that Islington’s performance targets were set locally.  

 A member of the public queried if regular stock surveys were carried out to minimise 
the number of repairs needed. It was advised that the Council did have a cyclical 
improvement programme but did not routinely survey the condition of homes.  

 
The Chair thanked John Everett for his attendance.  
 

90 RESIDENT-LED SCRUTINY: SERVICE REVIEW GROUP PROGRAMME FOR 2015/16 
(Item B5) 
Jim Rooke presented the report, copy interleaved, during with the following main points 
were made – 
 

 The Service Review Group was a resident scrutiny group comprised of directly 
managed tenants, tenant management organisation tenants, and leaseholders.  

 It was proposed that the Group would review ‘how the housing service learns from 
complaints’ and ‘communications around new build housing’ in 2015/16. Each 
review would conclude with a report being presented to the Housing Scrutiny 
Committee. The scrutiny topics had been suggested by the group.  

 The Committee welcomed the proposals for resident-led scrutiny.  
 
RESOLVED:  
That the proposed work plan of the Service Review Group for 2015/16 be approved.  
 

91 SCRUTINY TOPICS 2015/16 (Item B6) 
The Chair suggested that the Committee undertake reviews as follows:   
 

 Capital Works – to investigate the Council’s use and procurement of contractors, 
value for money, effectiveness, and how capital works can be used to drive local 
employment; 
 

Page 4



Housing Scrutiny Committee -  8 June 2015 
 

5 
 

 Responsive Repairs – to consider effectiveness, value for money, and resident 
experiences with the service. This review could include an evidence gathering 
session.  

 
It was also suggested that the Committee could contribute to the Health and Care Scrutiny 
Committee’s proposed review of dampness in properties.  
 
It was also suggested that the Committee could consider the impact of the new right to buy 
proposed by the Government. Officers advised that although the right to buy was likely to 
have significant implications for Islington, legislation was required to implement the scheme 
and this was not expected to be agreed in the near future. It was advised that officers would 
provide an update to the Committee when further information was available.  
 
RESOLVED:  
1) That reviews of Capital Works and Responsive Repairs be undertaken, subject to 

approval by the Policy and Performance Committee;  
2) That the Committee contribute to the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee’s proposed 

review of dampness in properties, subject to approval by the Policy and Performance 
Committee;  

3) That a work plan and scrutiny initiation documents be drawn up and submitted to the 
next meeting.  

 

92 INFORMATION ITEM - ESTATE SERVICES MANAGEMENT: WRITTEN WITNESS 
EVIDENCE (Item B7) 
Noted. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.05 pm 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



       
 

HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16 

 
  
 
 
8 JUNE 2015 

 
1. Membership, Terms of Reference and Dates of Meetings 

 
2. Scaffolding and Work Platforms: Draft Report and Recommendations  

 
3. Estate Services Management: Draft Report and Recommendations  

 
4. Housing Repairs: Performance Indicators  

 
5. Resident-led Scrutiny: Service Review Group Programme for 2015/16  

 
6. Information Item – Estate Services Management: Written Witness Evidence  

 
 

 
13 JULY 2015 
 

1. RSL Scrutiny (TBC) 
 

2. Work Programme 2015/16 
 

3. Capital Programming: Scrutiny Initiation Document and Presentation  
 

4. Responsive Repairs: Scrutiny Initiation Document and Presentation 
 

5. Future Approach to RSL Scrutiny  
 
 
7 SEPTEMBER 2015 
 

1. RSL Scrutiny 
 

2. Capital Programming: Witness Evidence 
 

3. Update on PFI Performance  
 
 
8 OCTOBER 2015 
 

1. Capital Programming: Witness Evidence  
 

2. Service Review Group: How the Housing Service Learns from Complaints 
 

3. Update on the New Right-to-Buy  
 

 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 
16 NOVEMBER 2015 
 

1. RSL Scrutiny  
 

2. Capital Programming: Witness Evidence  
 

3. Resident Satisfaction Survey 
  
 
18 JANUARY 2016 
 

1. Capital Programming: Draft Recommendations   
 

2. Responsive Repairs: Witness Evidence  
 

3. Executive Member Presentation  
 
  
29 FEBRUARY 2016 

 
1. RSL Scrutiny  

 
2. Responsive Repairs: Witness Evidence  

 
3. Capital Programming: Final Report  

 
 
19 APRIL 2016 
 

1. Responsive Repairs: Witness Evidence  
 

2. Update on Tenant Led Organisations 
 

3. Service Review Group: Review of New Build Communications 
 
 
 

26 MAY 2016 
 

1. Membership, Terms of Reference and Dates of Meetings 
 

2. Responsive Repairs: Draft Recommendations  
 

3. Scrutiny Topics 2016/17 
 
 
 

Page 8



SCRUTINY REVIEW INITIATION DOCUMENT (SID) 

Review:  Capital Programming 
 
 

Scrutiny Review Committee: Housing Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Director leading the review: Simon Kwong 

 
 
Lead Officers: Christine Short and Damian Dempsey 
 
 

Overall aim: To investigate how contractors are selected; to look at opportunities for using 
local labour; to explore who determines what works are undertaken.  
 

Objectives of the review: 

 To identify the different types of capital works carried out 

 To evaluate how the Council’s capital works contractors are procured 

 To consider the costs associated with the capital works programme  

 To measure the satisfaction of residents with capital programming 

 To consider how works are planned, prioritised, and communicated to residents 

 To consider if capital works can be used to drive local employment  

 To identify any areas for improvement 

 

How is the review to be carried out: 
 
Scope of the Review 
 
The review will focus on:  
 

1. Capital Works 

 The types of capital works carried out 

 Planning processes and asset management data base 

 How capital works are prioritised  

 Who determines what works are undertaken 
 

2. Procurement of Contractors  

 Procurement processes  

 Types of contract available  
 

3. Local Labour 

 Conditions contained within contract 

 How much local labour is currently used  

 Other options available to encourage this 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Types of evidence:  
 

1. Documentary evidence including  

 Contextual report/presentation  

 Service policies and strategies  

 Service evaluations and performance indicators 
 

2. Witness evidence including  

 Officer presentations  

 Representatives of the Council’s capital works contractors 

 The views of tenants and leaseholders  
 

 

Additional Information: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Programme 
 

Key output: To be submitted to Committee on: 

1. Scrutiny Initiation Document 13 July 2015 

2. Draft Recommendations  18 January 2016 

3. Final Report 26 February 2016 

 
 

Page 10



SCRUTINY REVIEW INITIATION DOCUMENT (SID) 

Review:  Responsive Repairs 
 
 

Scrutiny Review Committee: Housing Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Director leading the review: Simon Kwong 

 
 
Lead Officers: Matt West 
 
 

Overall aim: To consider resident experiences of the Responsive Repairs service 
 
 

Objectives of the review: 

 To identify the different types of responsive repairs carried out 

 To measure the satisfaction of residents with responsive repairs 

 To consider how works are reported, planned, prioritised, and communicated to 
residents 

 To evaluate how the service compares to the services of other London Boroughs 

 To confirm that the services are designed to deliver customer focused outcomes 

 To identify any areas for improvement 

 

How is the review to be carried out: 
 
Scope of the Review 
 
The review will focus on:  
 

1. Responsive Repairs  

 The types of repair carried out 

 Reporting and planning processes  

 How responsive repairs are prioritised  
 

2. Resident Satisfaction  

 How resident satisfaction can be measured  

 Current levels of resident satisfaction  

 Communication with residents 

 How resident satisfaction can be improved, if required 
 

3. Other considerations 

 Comparisons to other London Boroughs  
 
 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Types of evidence:  
 

1. Documentary evidence including  

 Contextual report/presentation  

 Service policies and strategies  

 Service evaluations and performance indicators 
 

2. Witness evidence including  

 Presentation from officers 

 The views of tenants and leaseholders from the repairs Reference Group 

 Presentation from Kwest regarding how impartial data is collected 

 Presentation from external Call Centre Customer Excellence Accreditor 
 

3. Visits  

 Visit to the Brewery Road Site to see the operation in progress (optional) 
 

Additional Information: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Programme 
 

Key output: To be submitted to Committee on: 

1. Scrutiny Initiation Document 13 July 2015 

2. Draft Recommendations  26 May 2016 

3. Final Report June 2016 (Date TBC) 

 
 

Page 12



Areas of Enquiry for Registered Provider Sessions at Housing Scrutiny 2015/16 

The Housing Scrutiny Committee has a rolling programme of inviting RPs with a significant 

presence as landlords in the borough to meet the Committee. In 2014/15 the Committee 

heard from Islington and Shoreditch Housing Association, Southern Housing Association, 

and Circle Anglia Housing Association.  

Set out below are areas for enquiry which can be sent to invitees in advance, along with an 

indication of any areas which the Committee are particularly interested in. 

The Committee is asked to approve the below areas for enquiry, subject to any 
additions or amendments the Committee may have. 

 

Areas of Enquiry for Registered Providers 

Overarching: 

• What’s going well for your work in Islington? 
 

• What are your areas of concern? How can you work more closely with Islington 
Council on those? 
 

Specific: 

• Resident satisfaction – Tell us about your resident satisfaction figures; have they 
changed over recent times, and how does that compare with similar RPs? 
 

• Performance – Tell us about your performance in repairs; rent collection; voids and 
relets; gas safety; and managing antisocial behaviour. How does it compare with 
other RPs? Are there areas you need to improve? 
 

• Voids and relets – Islington has seen a drop in Housing Association available lets 
coming through our nominations process compared to the Council’s own. What are 
your thoughts on this and how could we work with you to increase available 
properties again? 
 

• Rents – What is your approach to affordable rents – i.e. up to 80% of market rent? 
Islington Council policy is to let all properties at target rent, and we are keen to 
encourage partners to do the same in our borough.  
 

• Tenancies – The Council’s policy is to provide life time tenancies and we encourage 
partners to take the same approach. What is your approach generally and do you 
provide any fixed term tenancies in Islington? 
 

• Finances and wages – What annual surplus did your organisation generate in the 
last financial year? How does this compare to the sector average? Do you have 
policies on the London Living Wage and the ratio between the highest and lowest 
paid staff? 
 

• Maintaining assets and developing homes – How do you invest in your stock in 
our borough? Have you sold any properties in Islington, and if so where did that 
investment go? What are your priorities for investment? Are you planning to build or 
acquire any new homes at target rent in the borough? 
 

• Policy changes: Right to Buy and Welfare reform changes – What impact will the 
new Government policies have? What are you doing to support tenants affected by 
welfare reform and how can the Council work more closely with you to support 
tenants? 
 Page 13

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	2 Work Programme 2015/16
	3 Capital Programming: Scrutiny Initiation Document and Presentation
	4 Responsive Repairs: Scrutiny Initiation Document and Presentation
	5 Future Approach to RSL Scrutiny

